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CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). " I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for August 16th , 2005. For the record, we have in attendance this
afternoon...Members Tavares, Pontanilla, Molina, Mateo, Anderson, and Carroll.
Excused from the meeting this afternoon is Members Johnson and Hokama. Members,
we have a pretty full agenda this afternoon. We'll go ahead and start first with
identifying the first item, BF-8, Department of Water Supply's Financial Audit Report.
ITEM NO. 8:

DEPARTMENT OF WATER
REPORT (C.c. No. 04-293)

SUPPLY'S

FINANCIAL

AUDIT

CHAIR KANE: Members, just a note that this audit is--well, first ...
. . . we're gonna provide discussion for this Report, and we do have a few gentlemen here
this afternoon to provide us ... some .. .information. Dh...this audit is, again, not
required by the Charter, Members, just a note. It used to be required by lenders and
revenue bond holders and the Board of Water Supply. The ...however, the audit does
help to provide ratepayers a little more confidence in the financial of the ... financials of
the Department. .. which may help in justifying water rate increases, among other things.
Due to the ... Charter amendment in November of '02, the Department of Water Supply is
reported ... as a "proprietary fund" instead of "component unit" of the County for Fiscal
Years '03 and '04. And so I just wanted to state that for the record, Members. We do
have with us, from Russell Yamane ... and Associates, CPAs, Incorporated,
Mr. Russell Yamane--good afternoon, Mr. Yamane-MR. YAMANE: Good afternoon.
CHAIR KANE: --and Mr. Randall Taniguchi. Good afternoon, Mr. Taniguchi.
MR. TANIGUCHI: Good afternoon.
CHAIR KANE: Members, before we proceed...with public testimony, which we do have
people signed up to testify, I'll provide any opening comments on this first item .. .if
Mr. Yamane or Mr. Taniguchi--if you folks have any opening remarks prior to us getting
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into ... testimony and proceeding with the agenda .. .the Chair will yield. Mr. Yamane,
any opening comments this afternoon?
MR. YAMANE: We have no comments at this point, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members, we have people signed up to testify. We'll go
ahead and recognize them. Those of you who have signed up, we'll provide you with
three minutes, an additional minute to conclude your comments, for a total of four
minutes. If there's anybody here who has a cell phone or pager.. .including the
Chair...please tum it to the off or to the silent mode, and that way we can avoid any
unnecessary distractions to this meeting. Please state your name for the record when you
come to the podium here. And if you do represent an organization, we'd like to know
that as well. First person to testify, Members, on Item Number 41, we have
Teya Penniman. She has provided a map ... that you all should have on your desk. And
following Ms. Penniman, is Jim Smith.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. PENNIMAN:
Aloha, Chair Kane and Council Members. I am Teya Penniman,
With me today also is
Manager of the Maui Invasive Species Committee.
Adam Radford, who is our Vertebrate Operations Supervisor who can answer any
specific questions you might have about our operations ... frog operations. I'm here to
request that you approve the proposed budget amendment which is part of today's
agenda... which will allow the County to accept and use 100,000 dollars from the State
for controlling Coqui frogs on Maui. We also request that you allocate those funds to the
Maui Invasive Species Committee for continued work on Coqui frogs. I'd just like to
take this opportunity to update you on what we have been doing. Last year, the Maui
Invasive Species Committee dedicated a portion of State funding towards controlling
Coqui frogs on Maui. These funds allowed us to hire a temporary crew of four workers
and to retain a field crew supervisor, Mr. Radford, whose primary responsibility is to
work on the Coqui frog problem here on Maui. This crew is now working four to five
nights a week to detect and control the frogs. Slowly but surely we are meeting with
success. The map we have prepared shows some of our successes to date. In specific, it
shows those items that, those areas where we have succeeded in controlling frogs at
locations. And by that I mean that almost all of those locations, we have gone back after
three months and still are not detecting male, calling males at those sites. However,
because of funding limitations, that crew--which is now fully trained and operational--is
expected to work only through October. What is a night of frog work look like? Based
on our knowledge of frog locations, the crew heads out to a neighborhood where contact
and earlier survey work has been done. Once on site, the crew contacts each landowner
where the work will be done that night. Inevitably, those contacts also involve more
public education as well as learning from the residents about frog locations and
activities. Depending on the level of infestation, the terrain, and vegetation, the crew will
either be hand-capturing, conducting small-scale spray operations, or using a 100-gallon
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sprayer on loan from the Hawaii Department of Agriculture to control the frogs.
Locating and getting to the individual frogs may take several hours and several visits.
We know that even though the frogs may no longer be heard at a site that is labeled
"controlled", that repeat visits and vigilance are necessary because we're only able to
actively target the calling males. We believe that a trained crew can, can continue to be
effective throughout the year, especially with the landowner cooperation that we are
seeing. MISC also would like to use a portion of the funds to develop and implement a
Maui-based frog-free certification program for nurseries to help stem the spread of frogs
from growers. Additionally, some of this funding could be used to support development
of a hot water treatment for plant distributors. Unfortunately, I cannot stay for your
deliberations this afternoon. I can answer any specific questions you have now, and
Adam can stay if you want to ask any questions later. Thank you for your continued
support of our efforts to keep our peaceful nights on Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Penniman? Mister. .. uh, excuse
me, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much for
coming. Some of these sites appear to be ...maybe in resort areas.
MS. PENNIMAN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are there any attempts by any private or corporate
attempts to eradicate the infestation in these areas?
MS. PENNIMAN: There has been some efforts, yes. In particular, up in the Kapalua
area... there have been efforts to help control in that area. And we are finding some of
the other resort areas have effectively worked to control the popUlation. Adam, would
you say that's correct? Adam?
MR. RADFORD, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yes, it is.
MS. PENNIMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So this other area appears to be Kaanapali. So that, there,
they're... also working in that area?
MS. PENNIMAN: ... Okay. If! can ask Adam to answer some... come on up.
MR. RADFORD, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Oh.
MS. PENNIMAN: Well, you see, he's ...he's dealing with it ... I'd say "day-by-day", but it's
more night-by-night.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (laughter) . ..
MS. PENNIMAN: So if! may introduce Adam Radford?
CHAIR KANE: Sir, if you can state your name for the record, please.
MR. RADFORD: Adam Radford, MISC Vertebrate Operations Supervisor.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. So are any of the resorts working to eradicate in the
Kaanapali area?
MR. RADFORD: Yes, they are. In those areas, it's a cooperative effort where they have on-site
individuals controlling as they hear. And then, when we're in the area, we'll assist those
locations. And often, as Teya alluded to, with the residential sightings, we'll go and
discuss what's going on with security guards and bellman and individuals like that. And
they're actually the ones doing the on-the-ground work. I'm not sure about the
Kaanapali area, but I can... some examples, also control work in Wailea where they've
offered bounties. That occurs. And not particularly in Kaanapali, but some of the hotels,
say, Wailea do a 50 to 100 dollar bounty on ... (inaudible) . .. and males, even.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: A 50 to a 100 dollar bounty on one frog?
MR. RADFORD: Uh-huh. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Aren't they overrun by school children? .. .(laughter) . ..
ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. RADFORD: You would think so, but it's a strong incentive, you know, to ...nip a problem
in the bud.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Absolutely, that's fabulous. I like that a lot. You're
talking about. .. developing a Coqui-free certification for nurseries? Could you tell
us ... you know, as much as we are working to eradicate the infestation we have right
now, that's not gonna help if people are still bringing in plants that carry these eggs or
frogs. So I'm 100 percent behind this certification program that you're talking about.
Can you tell us, you know, I know that you may not be able to give us a, a definite
answer, but just some kind of idea of where the... ports of entry are, if you will? Where
they're coming in, I mean, can we ...
MS. PENNIMAN: Well, as, as you know, the Big Island has a huge problem, much, much
worse than Maui. And it, these, the eggs on the plants are very difficult to detect. And
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so--and we still continue to have shipment of many plants coming to Maui from the Big
Island. So I think it's safe to assume that we are continuing to get infestations from other
islands. Probably from the Big Island.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the Department of Ag hasn't stepped in with any kind
of program that would prohibit plants from the Big Island leaving unless they've been
certified Coqui-free?
MS. PENNIMAN:
The Department of Agriculture has .. .I, I. ..there are certified
nurseries ...there are certified nurseries which are not required to be inspected by the
Department of Agriculture before they ship plants. Unless a nurse, if the nursery is not
certified, then those plants are inspected by the Hawaii Department of Agriculture. But
the, the Department of Agriculture has limited resources, limited number of inspectors.
And so, I, I think that they do a very admirable job given their limited resources. But I
think it's physically not possible to treat all plants. That's why, I mean to in, fully inspect
every single plant. That's why something like a hot water treatment plant at one of, at the
ports of entry, I think, would be a desirable thing to see. Either requiring ... businesses
who are shipping plants to have their stock go through that before they leave, or else have
something like that here on Maui before they are spread. And the same thing, of course,
inter.. .intra-island. Because I'm sure we're continuing to move infected stock within
our own communities.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that something you could do in, in cooperation with the
Department of Ag or would it take special legislation or, you know?
MS. PENNIMAN:
treatment?

I'm not sure what specifically you're suggesting.

Like a hot water

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
MS. PENNIMAN: Requiring that would probably require, would require some kind of rule
change by the Department of Agriculture.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And just as ... one more question, Mr. Chairman.
We're talking about 100,000 dollars here today. I've heard some wild estimates of what
it would take to actually eradicate the Coqui frog on Maui. So could you give me your
learned opinion on what that might be?
MS. PENNIMAN: Unfortunately, with the infestation in Maliko Gulch, we're hesitant to use the
word "eradicate"--in other words, to say that we can actually get rid of every single frog
on Maui--because of the, the level of infestation there. But we do believe it's possible to
eradicate all of the outlying populations, and we would hope, effectively control the
Maliko Gulch population to keep it from spreading. And I think at a minimum, we're
looking at 500,000 dollars for a year for, I would say, at least three years.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And thank God they're not in Hana.
MS. PENNIMAN: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions on the testimony this afternoon, Members?
. . . Hearing none, sir, if we can have you just fill out one form so we have you as a
source of... of information. Thank you. Ms. Penniman, thank you very much.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay...next to testify, we have Mr. Jim Smith.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Smith approached the podium.

CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Smith will be testifying on Item Number 41.
MR. SMITH: ... Chairman Kane, Members of the Budget Committee, my name is Jim Smith.
And I'm .. .interested in, in.. .how funds are, are received by this Council and, and what
conditions are attached to their use, what add... additional. .. expenditures may occur as a
result of the acceptance of funding, and who is the authority for committing these
additional expenditures. What comes to mind is ... the grant from the Legislature
regarding handicap improvements and the expenditures in addition to what that grant is
involved, that, that the County was actually committed to. A provision of the resolution
accepting this ... grant--and it's kind of vague in the sense that this, it connects the State
and the Federal government in saying 100,000 dollars is available. So I'm not sure it's a
Federal grant, how that. . .it doesn't seem to be a clean stream, it doesn't seem to be any
information as to whether you could get more. So I don't know whether this is initiated
by a letter to the Councilor whether it's initiated by the Mayor. . .in coming before you.
But I would ask that. .. that the resolution be carefully looked at to provide that the
expenditure of additional resources and the commitment of funding may not be agreed
to ...by the signature or amendment of the Executive Branch--that when there's an
additional expenditure of money or resources, that this County be made aware of that, the
Council be made aware of that and that it control that expenditure in some ways. It's ...
. . . a bit of a concern to see money being appropriated to one specific use when in effect
it seems like a comprehensive effort should be made at funding. The reference to
expenditures of resources in, in resort areas brings to, for the idea of maybe that should
be financed by the tourism authority. Or maybe that. .. there should be a commitment of
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resources to Maliko Gulch, specific to Maliko Gulch... and that the. . .where the
economic influence of the frog is, is... strong, well, then maybe the people who are
affected. .. should spend more money. I'm not sure how much money comes to the
coffers of this Committee from the resort communities and resort organizations and
corporations. That should be a major contributing force. And as they contribute, then the
rest of the island is, is in effect benefited so that that resource can be directed to outlying
areas where there isn't an economic .. .in force ... economic .. .benefit to the Coqui frog
problem. Thank you very much. And...just to reiterate, I would hope that you would
provide in your resolution that any expenditures of resources, in addition to the 100,000
dollar grant that's going to be affecting, be brought back to this Council. You might set a
limit on that. I'm just a little concerned about that. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Smith. Members, any questions for the testifier?
· .. Hearing none, thank you for your testimony, sir. Is there anybody else here in the
Chamber that wishes to testify? Now is your opportunity to come forward.
· .. Members, seeing that nobody is approaching, without objections, we'll go ahead and
close ... public testimony for this afternoon.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. We'll go ahead and close it up .
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we have before us, Committee of the item, uh, excuse
me, Budget and Finance Committee Item Number 8.
ITEM NO. 8:

DEPARTMENT OF WATER
REPORT (C.c. No. 04-293)

SUPPLY'S

FINANCIAL

AUDIT

CHAIR KANE: Before us ... again, we have Mister. .. Yamane here ...
· .. as well as Mr. Taniguchi here. Members, the Chair's intent is to provide
Mr. Yama... Mr. Yamane and Mr. Taniguchi to perhaps walk us through and give us
some general comments regarding the Financial Audit Report. And then from there, I'll
open it up for questions. Any objections to how we proceed, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE:
Okay.
Hearing none, the Chair recognizes the Vice-Chair of the
Committee ... being with us. Mr. Hokama, good afternoon.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Yamane, why don't you go ahead and give the body some
highlights of the ... financial report? Excuse me, the Independent Auditor's Report.
MR. YAMANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
· .. I'll go through this quickly. I know your agenda is quite packed today. This is for
the audit for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2004. Our Independent Auditor's Report starts
on Page 1.
· .. And it basically informs the reader that the audit was conducted in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. And the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In our
opinion, the financial statements are fairly presented .. .in terms of its financial position,
operations, and cash flows. If we were to quickly tum to Page 3 of the Report, this is a
statement of net assets. And it continues onto Page 4.
· .. But on Page 3, total assets stood at 308 million dollars ... slightly higher than the
previous year where it stood at approximately 302 million.
· .. So these are the assets that the Water Supply...Department of Water Supply owns as
of those dates.
· .. Over on Page 4 ... presents the liabilities that the organization owes as of June 30,
both year ends.
· .. At June '04, the amount that was owed is about 40, just slightly less than 45 million
dollars. And that's close to the bottom, about three-fourths of the page down. Liabilities
are down from the previous year where it stood at 49 million dollars.
· .. The difference between your total assets of about 308 million... and your liabilities of
about 45 million... represents the net asset of the organization...which is presented at the
bottom of Page 4. And it amounts to 264 million dollars. Within the net asset categories,
there are several designations. The largest being the amounts that have been invested in
capital assets. There's certain portions that are restricted from external sources ... and the
balance would be unrestricted which the Water Supply would not have any... external
impositions on it. So that quickly .. .looking at Pages 3 and 4, is a snapshot in time of the
assets, liabilities, and net assets of the Water Supply.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Yamane. Members, the floor is open for any questions to
Mr. Yamane as it pertains to the Independent Auditors Report for Year ending June 30th ,
'04, for June 30 '03 and '04. Questions?
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NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one quick one, Chairman... for our auditor. The decrease in the
net cash balances... your, the, your current report to us shows a decrease of
approximately.. .3Y2 million dollars. Most of that cash was used for specifically what
purposes that you can share with us this afternoon, please?
... I'm looking at Page 6, Mr. Yamane.
MR. YAMANE: Yes, Page 6 is your statement of cash flows. It's segregated into three
categories. Operating up on the top. This is your normal business, where you're
receiving cash from your customers, you're paying expenditures. The second category is
the financing activities. And this is where... the Department has expended, in this case,
about 8 million dollars in terms of construction and progress and other capital assets that
it acquired. I guess in general, some of the decrease in cash flow in your cash position
could be, could have been used for some of those acquisitions. It also ...was also used to
pay down some of the debt. On the next line there's about 11 million dollars that was
paid down on the Department of Water Supply's bonds and notes. So it's .. .it's not
anything specific, Councilman Hokama, but those would be the .. .largest use of cash
during the year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: From your professional. .. advice and standpoint to this Committee,
the ...the balance of cash and equivalents .. .is, is at a level that should be of no concern
to us?
... Is it within what, what I would call parameters of, of ...
MR. YAMANE: ... I hate to hedge on this, but looking at the balance, the statement of net
assets, cash and investments--which really needs to be looked at in total, which is about
21 Yz million dollars ... that's unrestricted .. .I, I think the key question really boils down
to what future projects does the Water Supply have that needs to be funded and how will
that be paid for ... because there's generally two sources, either from internal operations,
and if not, then you probably need to float bonds to assist in payment of those ... capital
projects. So it's very difficult to answer if that's a sufficient balance, not knowing what
the future projects of the Water Supply is.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Okay. I know it's a hard question, Chairman, because we're
dealing with, basically, a budget one year in advance, and we're already looking at a
auditor's report of things that occurred more than a year ago. So, you know, there's a
lapsing in time in the, in the review of this auditor's report. So I can .. .I appreciate that.
And again, Chairman, I know we've made some adjustments to rates and
fees ...regarding the Water Department and their water rates.
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... So maybe I should be more concerned about the 2005 audit's findings which.. .it's
not in any preliminary state at this time, right, Mr. Yamane?
MR. YAMANE: Yes, we've just, we've started part of the audit. .. preliminarily. And you, we
probably won't be complete 'til October, November some time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I thank you for your response. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Further questions, Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, Members, the Chair's recommendation on this item is to file
the Report. Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Tavares ...to file
County Communication 04-293, which transmitting the Report entitled: Department of
Water Supply, County of Maui, Financial Statements for the Year end June 30th , '04 and
'03, Supplemental Schedules for the Year ended June 30th, '04 and Independent
Auditor's Report. Discussion ...Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous. It'll be moved forward as a
recommendation to the full body.
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AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

EXC.:

Councilmember Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FILING of communication.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Members. We're moving on. We have before you,
Budget and Finance Item Number 9, the Single Audit Report.

ITEM NO. 9:

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT (C.c. No. 05-57)

CHAIR KANE: Members, the Committee is in receipt of County Communication 05-57 from
the Council Chair, transmitting a report entitled: the County of Maui, State of Hawaii,
Single Audit Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30th, 2004. And we are here,
Members, as a Committee to discuss this Report. Mr. Yamane, any opening remarks for
the Single Audit Report, including any type of highlights that you'd like to make the
body aware of?
MR. YAMANE: Mr. Chair, I, I have no specific comments at this point in time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, the Chair will note that this audit is required by
the United States Office of Management and Budget, Circular A-J33 Compliance
Supplement for each of the County's major Federal programs listed on Page 3 of this
Report. The Auditor does report that the County complied in all material respects with
these requirements .
. . . And as noted by the auditor, there were no major findings in this Report. The Chair
will open it up for discussion or questions. Members, any questions or discussions
regarding the Single Audit Report?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Yes, Mr. Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I find in your Report to, to us, Mr. Yamane,
that we ...would not be considered as a low-risk auditee. I'm assuming that is something
that you would like to be considered as ... or am I mistaken? I, I bring up Page 3 of your
summary of auditor's results, that we did not qualify. And is, ifthat is something that we
should try and... achieve, what. .. would we need to do as a County to
become ...recognized as a low-risk County?
MR. YAMANE: I guess ... this really is a definition that's used in Circular OMB A-133. And
that really is from an audit perspective. If, there are only two classifications. One
is .. .low-risk. .. and the other one is high-risk.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(laughter) . ..
MR. YAMANE: And it's, again, it's more from an auditor's perspective. If an organization has,
is considered to be high risk, then, you know, from an audit perspective, we need to do
certain procedures, as opposed to if you're in the other classification. Now the reason
why the County is classified as, as not as a low-risk, but as a high-risk category is if you
have had any findings in the past. .. you're automatically put into that category. And
therefore ... the County unfortunately has had some, several findings in the past, and you
have been put into that category. And that's really, again, as I mentioned, from, from an
auditor's perspective as to how we need to approach it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this specifically how we have administered and reported the use of
Federal funds ... only... since this is basically a requirement of Federal fund ... funding,
single ... single audits?
MR. YAMANE: That is correct. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's a good understanding on our part?
MR. YAMANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there anything that we can do to ... get to that next level or
is that something virtually... unattainable ... (end a/tape, start IB) . ..
MR. YAMANE: ... I definitely think that that's something that can be attainable .
. . . And, you know, again it, it boils down to minimizing the types of findings that arise
during our audit. You know, and these, the findings that we have noted in the past
several years ... aren't necessarily specific to the Federal grants themselves. They've
been more general in nature ... to the County's overall operations. But nonetheless, they
are still findings. But I certainly think that you can still strive to attain that low-risk
category.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, if! may, please?
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think .. .I just need to ask you this question, Mr. Yamane,
'cause .. .it's of a concern to me currently under this year's program, but on Page 5... as
one of... read, the reportable conditions ... and again, I understand this was for the year
that ended June 30, 2004 ...regarding bank deposits ...timely ...
· .. the ability, you know, to ensure reporting on a timely basis, we post correctly...that
we don't. .. have a problem with the general ledger. Does this also relate to the payroll
area? Or is this just as it regards to the Federal funds and the reporting of the use of those
funds?
MR. YAMANE: This ...reportable condition originally arose back in 2002.
· .. And it has ... was an issue back then. And we ...we were required to follow up on it
in subsequent years. And .. .in 2004, the year. .. that, of this audit, we had found that at
that point in time, corrections were made for this specific .. .issue at that time. So it does
not . .. address any payroll, specific issues related to payroll.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I, I appreciate your response to that. And...my last question
would be then on the ...
· .. Page 7 of your Report, please ... Mr. Yamane... regarding the ...real property tax
subdivision assessments. On Page 7, which is your last comment from, you stated far, as
far as Management's response ...
· .. that it is still not completed, but anticipated to be completed.
· .. Can we take this comment that you've .. .include it in your Report as ... something
that is of satisfactory status ... that it raises no further red flags for this Committee or the
Council to ... uh ... to continue its oversight to ensure that. .. any and all revenues owed to
this County is being properly captured and... booked on our ledgers?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. YAMANE: ... At this point in time, Council. .. Councilman Hokama, we are currently
conducting the, the audit for June 30, '05. We have started on the audit section for the
real property taxes. I mean, at this point in time, we're, we're not fully complete with it.
We haven't found any major . .. areas of concerns. But it's still too early in the game for
us to ...make a formal comment at this point in time. Certainly, back when these, when
we first noted the problem, it was a major concern for ... from our standpoint because,
you know, failure to properly map the subdivisions and, you know, expansion has,
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has ...the growth in Maui has been tremendous. And, you know, we felt that there was a
major. .. of concern that the County was definitely.. .losing possible tax dollars at that
point. But certainly up to now, we haven't found anything that would... cause us any
concerns as it relates to this specific issue.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Yamane. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, before I recognize the next Member, just to follow-up
on this particular item, we do have the Director of Finance with us this afternoon as a
resource. The Chair has an interest in getting a follow-up because the recommendation
on that item of real property tax subdivision assessments, on Page 6 of your Report,
under the title "Recommendation" which reads: the Real Property Tax Division should
perform an assessment of their staffing requirements. And it goes on. Under the
response, which I think Mr. Hokama just cited, the second part of it. .. the Chair doesn't
see... a response to the first portion of that recommendation, specific to their staffing
requirements or an assessment of their staffing requirements. And the Chair intends to
ask the Director to come forward and provide us an update because I think it's important
since we're moving through this budget cycle and we're gonna be approaching quickly
our March 15 th deadline for the '07 proposal. And see if we're on track to ... taking care
of this particular issue. Members, without objections, Mr. Young coming forward-COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: --our Director? Thank you. Mr. Young, if you can, please identify yourself for
the record. And if you can provide some comment on any action taken as far as the
performance to assess the staffing requirements needed to close this ...this loophole, I
guess some would term it as.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, Members. In terms of this particular
finding issue, the assessment on the staffing levels .. .is .. .I would say, in my opinion,
incomplete to the extent that I have assessed that there is a definite staffing problem.
Nothing really has changed in that--as the Members are aware, there are a number of
vacancies in the Real Property Tax Division, most critically in the area of the tax
mapping area. The... assessment is that the reason for the prolonged vacancies is the
nature and technical expertise that is required for that area does not exist in the
Maui ... employment base, essentially. And that has put a, you know, immense amount
of pressure on our needs to outsource, outsource this function--which is what the
Department has done by arranging a contract with the City and County of Honolulu to
process these mappings for the last. .. essentially, the last two calendar years. There is
progress that has been made in that regards. City and County has taken over a lot of the
backlog ... that is identified in this Report. And.. .I, I believe there still exists a backlog.
It's probably not to the extent as when this audit report was completed, but there has been
major progress done. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, if you recall that. . .it was ... reported to us that as of, at,
back. .. of December of 2004, I believe, that 95 percent of all the backlog would be
completed. We're in August now. So the Chair does intend to have a letter sent out to
the Director to provide us with an updated status. I don't think it's appropriate now for
us to have that discussion, but we'll get a letter sent over and provide us with an updated
response to the status of... of the backlog as it impacts, again, our revenues for this
County. Members, any additional questions for either Mr. Young or to Mr. Yamane on
the Report itself?
· .. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman.
· . . Please excuse me if I ask a question that you all have the answer to. This is my
freshman year, and I'm not aware of why it took us ...we're looking at an audit that
was ... for last Fiscal Year, ending of June '04.
· .. And it was completed ...when? I don't see ... any date as to when it was actually
completed.
MR. YAMANE: Our signoff date on the reports are December 2i\ 2004.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so is there a reason that we're just now here in August
looking at this, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, it is the .. .it's the Chair's prerogative to bring forward issues
that impact the whole Budget and Finance master agenda. And quite frankly, this was
one of the things that did not. .. seem as a pressing issue that comes before us with
respects to us going through the last six ... from .. .{laughter} . .. January until now
with... our most recent Budget. And so this is where we catch up with all the financial
reports, including this one.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Seems like a pretty important report ... {laughter} . ..
it's the audit.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: And ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I'm sorry. Are you done?
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll yield to Ms. Tavares. She obviously knows something
I don't know.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Not, not that I know something it. .. that you might not
know, but. . .I think that in the flurry of our activity during the Budget, you may recall
that we use the CAFR and the, and the information that was in it as we were doing our
Budget in March and April. So we didn't really review it as a, a document in itself, but
we did use portions of it as we were deliberating our Budget for Fiscal '06.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: '" Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm just wondering if... the auditor can give us some
idea...regarding the deposits. Can you ...
. . . can you give me an idea of, can you just quantify that in any way...what amount of
money we're talking about?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Yamane, are you prepared to respond?
MR. YAMANE: Mr. Chair, I'm not able to respond at this point. The finding did occur in a
previous year and I don't have the files with us at that point in time, uh ... for that specific
issue. But I, I can obtain that amount and get that to you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
Committee?

Thank you. Ms. Anderson, would you like that forwarded to the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, urn .. .I think Member Hokama asked about this also.
And did you give us some assurance that this ...this problem with unposted items has
been solved?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Yamane?
MR. YAMANE: Yes. In our... testing for this particular year, that. .. there has been some
corrections. And again, this occurred in June 30, '03. And, you know, Management's
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response is on Page 5. They have ...uh .. .improved things in terms of the posting and the
timeliness of that. Uh ...
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. YAMANE: '" Yeah-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Young, any additional comments? Director?
MR. YOUNG: Only that, Mr. Chair...with these, these procedures ... put in place at the time of
this, of these findings ... they still remain in place today and there's been some level of
improved oversight over 'em to make sure that the Department doesn't slip and this
finding doesn't reoccur.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, just, again, a follow-up to reiterate that the next. .. report is due,
I believe, October, November? Is that what was stated earlier?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah .. . {inaudible} . ..
MR. YAMANE: Probably.. .it will be done in November, maybe early December.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me. So we'll have updated information, Ms. Anderson, specific to your
question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In October?
CHAIR KANE: In November or early December-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --as a report that's gonna be submitted to the body. So it'll be part of the
master agenda again. Not necessarily posted as an agenda item, but it will be available
there. And if you'd like to have a request for it to be reviewed, we can have that put
forward as a request for an agenda item for a future Budget and Finance meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Then I'll wait 'til that comes out. And ...
. . . because ...we do have Mr. Young here ...
. . . the, the backlog of the mapping... can you give us an idea of what percent it's at
now?
MR. YOUNG: ... Well, Ms. Anderson and Members, truthfully, I wouldn't want to offer up
any... where we are percentage-wise. There's been a number of estimates. I understand
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that the previous Finance Director did offer up that 95 percent complete. When
I. .. started back in September, about a year ago, I checked on the backlog issue. And ...
. . . to me, the ... the ... the, the, the, the extent of the backlog.. .1, I wouldn't classify as
95 percent because in my definition of a backlog, everything not done as of
yesterday . .. to me, is a backlog. At the time that the Real Property Tax Division
estimated that 95 percent, it was looking at backlogs up until 2002, December. And that
was, and that 95 percent value was offered at some point in '93 or '94. So I, I hesitate in
terms of offering the backlog. What I can say is that Real Property Tax Division has
offered that the ... the progress with the Honolulu City and County, as well as its own
efforts to improve the internal skills level of the staff that we have there, they are making
significant progress. The ...what we're trying to do is look at where the backlog is, up
until what date. And right now, it's looking that they're caught up pretty much through
everything through the good chunk of.. .2004. So when, when I evaluate the backlog
from Real Property Tax as a Director, it's based on a time period, rather than the total
overall. .. sum of subdivisions left. So I, I'll make sure to include that in my response to
the Cornrnittee--but just so the Members are aware that I'm looking at it as where are
they caught up to at what point in time.
CHAIR KANE: And again, Ms. Anderson, that's why I said earlier we'll go ahead and get a
letter sent out and get a specific status report so we can have that a separate item for
discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Young.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman-CHAIR KANE: --good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Then, then, Mr. Director, in, in addition,
you know, I guess through .. .in accordance with the letter that the Chair will be
forwarding to you, in order for us to get a better understanding of the impact of not really
being up to, up to date, are you also able to, to tell us exactly how much money that we're
not collecting as well, based on the number of subdivisions that are not yet mapped?
MR. YOUNG: Thank, thank you, Mr. Mateo. That, that's a good question because to clarify,
even though the subdivision mapping is backlogged, the Department is still issuing these
temporary CPRs or temporary TMKs. And what that is is that we are collecting tax
revenue on a projected estimate based on what the subdivision would be valued at if it
were subdivided. So there may be a situation where the County is, say, losing ... or
missing out on a portion or. .. but for the most part, because we are issuing these
temporary TMKs, that is severely minimized. And that, that was specifically to the
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Management response in this audit finding that you're ... that you're referencing. That is
still in place. Yeah, so when I talk about the "backlog", I'm talking about eliminating it
so that we're not using temporary, we're not using, you know, temporary CPRs or
temporary TMKs. I'm talking about fresh issued TMKs to all subdivided properties.
COUNCILMEMBERMATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members, for Mr. Young specific to some
of the items that reference directly to the Department of Finance?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, Mr. Young, thank you very much. We also have in
attendance, Ms. Lee, the Director of the Housing Department. There is an item ... on
Page 8, 03-03 Housing Section 8 Programs. And I'll, Members, I'll ... direct you to the
bottom regarding the update of the Fiscal Year '04, that the auditor has confirmed that the
Housing Department has filed all necessary reports for the previous years. And once you
read through--and I'm sure all of you have already read through all of that--it, there was
just a matter of miscommunication and misunderstanding. And so that has been clarified
and Ms. Lee's Department has followed through. She is here to answer any questions, if
any Member does have any, for clarification. If not, I'd like to provide Ms. Lee and
Mr. Young, as well as other resource personnel an opportunity to get back to their lives
in...their other office besides ours. Any questions for these individuals, Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, Members, any questions overall for the Report before the
Chair...makes his recommendation?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, Members, the Chair recommends that we file the Single
Audit Report that the Committee received through County Communication 05-57.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Tavares. Discussion,
Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".

- 20-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

August 16, 2005

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE:
Opposed?
Let the record show it's unanimous
Member Carroll's ... Members Carroll and Johnson, excused from the vote.

VOTE:

with

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FILING of communication.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Members. We're moving on to Budget and Finance
Item Number 3 on your... agenda for this afternoon, the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

ITEM NO. 3:

COMPREHENSIVE

ANNUAL

FINANCIAL

REPORT

(CAFR)

(C.C. No. 05-58)

CHAIR KANE: And, Members, we are here to discuss that Report and Management Letter.
. . . Mr. Yamane, any opening remarks on this item?
MR. YAMANE: ... Just one item ... again, to mention that this is under "New Presentation".
This is, I believe, the third ... or fourth year under GASB-34 where the financial
statements of the County also contains a different set of financial statements, similar
to ...not-for-profit organizations which reflect net asset categories. And these financial
statements are .. .in addition to the fund financial statements that are also presented.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions or comments with respects ...to ...what
we have before us, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the CAFR?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Ms. Tavares?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Mr. Chair, just that I was ... ahead of myself when I
made that last comment about the CAFR ... {laughter} . .. But, that's the document that
we use the most, I think, in our-COUNCILMEMBER

: Uh-huh.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --deliberations, and not the Single Audit. I apologize for
being a little ahead.
CHAIR KANE: ... Members, any questions or discussion with respects to observations and
recommendations? Under the status of the prior years, we have landfill accounts
receivables observations. We've got, again, follow-ups on cash deposits, real property
tax subdivisions noted there .
. . . Members, hearing none--oh, I'm sorry-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: ... {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: --Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Chairman.
Just one question on
the .. .landfill... accounts receivable. Um .. .is that like the seven... the 750,000 m
landfill receivables in dispute from one account or is it from a number of accounts?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Yamane, are you prepared to respond?
MR. YAMANE: Yeah, off-hand, I don't have that-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay.
MR. YAMANE: --information, Councilmember Molina. Urn . . . we, I, Randall ... Randall
believes it's ... several accounts that make that up. But we ... definitely can obtain that
information for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further discussion before the Chair makes his recommendation?
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: " .Chair, Chairman?
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CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: IfI may?
CHAIR KANE: Please.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: '" And again, Mr. Yamane, I know this is ... something about. .. a
year that has already lapsed, June 30th , 2004, so we're looking at something that pretty
much ended 13 months ago.
· .. But I know, you know, like the ...Fed, the Single Audit we just completed, cash
deposits comments very similar. So there's consistency regardless of the report. The
landfill accounts, I think that's something we've worked on for a few years 'cause I am
aware of some delinquent accounts on Lanai ... on the island of Lanai. Real property tax
subdivisions. The one that for me ... can, can make a difference, of course, is ... your
comments about capital improvement projects and how to make our County more .. .I
guess, accountable and for people like us to do our oversight properly. Uh ...
· .. I know you mentioned the software, and I believe for this County it's the KIVA
program ... that helps track. .. construction management? I, it may, that may be the
wrong program, but my understanding is we've invested a lot of money to get the right
hardware, to get updated software so that we can track our CIP projects a lot better and
we can minimize change orders and the need for supplemental appropriations to County
projects.
· .. Is there anything else you folks may, may want to add at this meeting that we should
be aware? Because one of things that always concerns me is change orders and the need
for more money to do a government job.
MR. YAMANE: ... Mr. Hokama, we don't have anything else to add at this point to this
comment. And as you mentioned, this ... this was during that time period when we were
auditing last year. But your, your comment with regards to change order. . .it seems like
it's .. .isn't that more of a fiscal management in terms of monitoring a project and the
need for additional funds? Really, this deals with--I mean, part of it might be dealing
with that, but this is more for the ... you know, compiling of the data and .. .I guess
this ... this, this area has taken a long time to compile some of the information. And
historically, I think, this is one ofthe last areas that we get to audit.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. YAMANE: And that kind of holds things back.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, I just bring it up because it is an area of, of concern to me. I
know you usually get involved once the project is completed.
· .. But I knew ... one thing I know from experience ... either the beginning or the end of
most capital improvement projects is where you tend to lose your butt and pay a lot more
if you're not careful or you don't know what you're doing.
· . . And so I just was wondering if there were things from an auditor standpoint you
could recommend to us that we should either. .. give more, more support for, or, or, or we
need to be more responsive of certain things that maybe the Division or the Departments
may need to do better--whether it be construction management or, or just how they
process the ...how they're processing their request for payments? Because everything is
dependent upon documentation, verification... and balances and accounts. So ... from
that standpoint, I was just wondering if you folks had any comments for us this afternoon,
gentlemen.
MR. YAMANE: Not, not at this point. Maybe that's something that we can take a harder look
at during the audit for this year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Uh... and again, I, you folks do a good job. I'm, I'm always
pleased with the ability for me to read and comprehend your report.
· .. And I'll be happy for you to note ...that the .. .in the upcoming review I hope you'd
take a look at payroll.
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. YAMANE: ... Yes, we understand there's been a change in the payroll system that
occurred in the later part of ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Last ...
MR. YAMANE: ... the last part of Fiscal. . June '05. So that is an area that ... as part of our
audit process, we need to understand the system, the new system and see how it is
functioning. So that's an area that we have started on, in gaining our understanding and
we will be doing testing in that area.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I'm done. Tharlk you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further questions, Members .. .in this area?
NOTE:

Silence.
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CHAIR KANE: ... Again, the Finance Department is being recommended to improve their
fiscal management or recordkeeping of construction in progress--as noted in part of this
discussion, Members. And if there's any need, we do, again, have Mr. Young, our
Director of Finance, here, available to provide any status ... beyond scope ... or excuse
me, beyond the timetable that is presented in the Report. But it looks like their, they're
on their way to providing compliance or bringing it back into make it a, a better system.
Members-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman ...
· .. and again, you, you would need to make a call, Chairman, if I'm kind of straying,
but. . .in the audit, just curious because we do this annually, Mr. Yamane,
Mr. Taniguchi ...
· .. things have changed because of Charter revisions ... such as the, where the Water
Department is, who they report to and whatnot. Is part of your annual audit to see
whether or not it makes sense for us to consolidate certain functions, such as ...
· .. billings and whatnot and ...whether that makes sense from an auditor's standpoint or
for, from a County's financial standpoint or retain and do things as we've doing it? Is, is
that part of the audit's scope also as far as recommendations to improve operations ...that
may be part of your Management Letter or not? I, I'm just curious if you would care to
respond, please.
MR. YAMANE: Yeah, that's not, hasn't been an area of focus. If you're referring specifically
to consolidating the Department of Water Supply--is that what you're referring to?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and again, we have other departments not necessarily part of
Finance ... but they have their own little procedures of. .. ofhow they may do ... (end of
tape, start 2A) . .. exactions or whatnot, but I would assume since Mr. Young and the
Charter through the ... through our Charter language holds the Finance Director. .. very
responsible for, for many, many things--maybe the most of any County officer. .. that as
part of the task you provide the County, as well as for, for the Finance Director, if these
are things under consideration in an annual financial review.
MR. YAMANE: Areas of efficiency, you know, may, may arise and we may make comments
on that. But that's, I guess, not the primary focus of our audit when we look at the
control system, the internal control arena. So it's, it's really.. .if you wanted to look at an
efficiency type of... process, I mean, I, I think you'd really have to look at. .. a separate
contract to, to look at where you can provide efficiencies for all, all the departments,
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really, I think. And, and you know, that may definitely be ... a good idea. I don't know
when the County last did that.
I think way back, I think they did it on a
department-by-department basis. Certainly that may of benefit to, to look at because,
really, I think, when you talk about efficiency, you talk about time studies and all
different other things. And, you know, that, that's very time consuming to, to do those
type of testing and to come up with valid recommendations.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I appreciate your comments, Mr. Yamane. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further questions, Members, before the Chair
makes his recommendation?
. . . Hearing none, Members, after... the discussion, the Chair recommends that the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, also known as the CAFR, be filed ... and that
goes along with County Communication 05-58.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded--Members Hokama and Tavares. Discussion?
... Hearing none, all in favor, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous.
Members Johnson and Carroll.

VOTE:

Excused from the vote,

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FILING of communication.
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CHAIR KANE: Gentlemen, thank you very much for your. .. attendance this afternoon. We
appreciate-MR. YAMANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Councilmembers.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, what is your pleasure? I would have called a recess at
2:45, for probably 10 or 15 minutes. We have one item left-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Go for it.
CHAIR KANE: --would you like to just-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Continue.
CHAIR KANE: --press, press forward?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Press on.
CHAIR KANE: Press on.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Press .. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Here we go, westward-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Westward we go.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Roger on ... (inaudible) . ..

CHAIR KANE: Members, I direct your attention to Item Number 41 of the Budget and Finance
Committee's agenda--grant funds from the State and amending the Fiscal Year '06
Budget, Office of the Mayor, regarding Coqui frog eradication.
ITEM NO. 41:

GRANT FUNDS FROM THE STATE; AND AMENDING FY 2006
BUDGET, OFFICE OF THE MAYOR (COQUI FROG ERADICATION)
(C.c. No. 05-245)

CHAIR KANE: Members, what we will be considering this afternoon are two things. First, we
will be looking at a revised proposed resolution entitled: authorizing the acceptance of a
grant of funds from the State of Hawaii, relating to Coqui frog eradication. And the
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purpose of this revised proposed resolution is to authorize the acceptance of the grant
funds. Second, Members, the Chair's intent will be to have before you the proposed bill
entitled: a bill for an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year '06 Budget for the County of
Maui as it pertains to the Office of the Mayor. And again, the purpose of this bill is to
add the Coqui frog eradication grant appropriated through Act 51, Sessions [sic] of Law
of Hawaii 2005 in the amount of $100,000. And this would be through Appendix A,
Members. We have with us this afternoon... from the Mayor's Office, Mr. Rob Parsons.
Good afternoon, Mr. Parsons.
MR. PARSONS: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, Members.
CHAIR KANE: Do you have any opening remarks specific to the proposed resolution, revised
resolution, as well as the proposed bill, Mr. Parsons?
MR. PARSONS: None at this time, Mr. Chair. I think it's pretty straightforward, but I'm here
to answer whatever questions you may have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, the floor is open for questions. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBERMATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Good afternoon.
MR. PARSONS: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... I, I guess the, the question is, because we just, you know,
the, the material that was provided to us showing the location of the Coqui frog
infestation areas, is primarily Maui island. Okay, would you know if, if similar problems
occur on Lanai and Molokai as well?
MR. PARSONS: We would be notified at monthly or bi-monthly MISC meetings from
MoMISC, from Lori Buchanan of MoMISC. I, I don't know without checking with
either Adam or Teya--who are, who are both still present today--whether there have been
reported sightings on Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. PARSONS: But the, the response, the ability to respond to them is, presumably, available
through MoMISC.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, okay. Well, I. .. my, my only concern was because we're
taking a look at the 100,000 dollars and because Maui Island was the only island that
identifies the sites . .. my concern would be that the 100,000 would be specifically to
control the, the Coqui problem on Maui island only. So .. .I would be concerned about
utilizing some of the funds ... one, to confirm the fact that there is either no Coqui
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problems on Molokai and Lanai ... because if we're gonnajust expand [sic] the money on
one island, the term "county" bothers me.
MR. PARSONS: ... I understand. I, I'm not aware of any reported ... Coqui sightings on
Molokai. 1. . .I would, once again ... offer the expertise of Teya--as long as she's still
here, I know she has a meeting coming up soon that she'll need to leave for--or Adam
who, who have been directly involved. But I have not had any calls to my office from
Molokai reporting Coqui frogs.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Rob. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Good afternoon, Mr. Parsons. Just one question. Any
particular restrictions to the usage of the, the funds, how it's to be used or... and, I guess,
would MISC be required to submit some kind of expenditure report to the County? I
would presume, probably, from the State they'd have to do, do a report for the State.
Would the County also get a copy of some type of report?
MR. PARSONS: We do through the, through the grants issued through Office of Economic
Development. In the Council budget. .. this year, there is appropriation of 50,000 dollars
that's going directly for Coqui frog control. So this would augment current efforts. And
as Teya mentioned in her testimony, they have brought on... a crew which is now
trained. And with the funds that are available from the 50,000 in our budget and also
money that they get awarded from the State through the Hawaii Invasive Species
Council, the HISC ... they're projecting that they wouldn't be able to keep on some of
these temporary hires. This 100,000 dollars, as it's explained to me by Teya, would give
them the continuity to keep the crew on as we get into the more rainy season. There
haven't been as many calls to my office requesting citric acid. I'm still. .. dispensing
citric acid to those people who have small backyard populations who wanna do their own
control and spraying. That. .. MISC does the same thing. So we, we work. .. you know,
in cooperation there to dispense citric acid ... and instructions on its safe usage.
So ... this, I believe, would really allow the, the workers that they have on staff now to be
retained as fulltime MISC employees.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh, Chairman, just a, maybe a different take from my colleague ... of
Molokai. I would just ask Mr. Parsons .. .I believe either today, yesterday...Manele Bay
Hotel officially closed, as well as the Challenge Mane1e course due to ...renovations and
what Four Seasons calls ...the term, uses the term "rebranding", which I kind of find
quite offensive. But. .. that's what they're gonna do to us on Lanai--rebrand us.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (laughter) . .. Oh, sore.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Db, but nonetheless, I would say there's things happening down at
Manele Bay regarding renovations. And I'm sure it's gonna impact some of the... fauna
and foliage there as, as well as on the north shore at Club Lanai ... which they're already
in violations for SMA violations and...many other things. But I will ask if your office
could at least make them aware ...that if it's not there, we don't want it there. And.. .1
would rather we nip it in advance of a colony being able to establish itself, please. So I
would appreciate any efforts from your office ... to have a company that's been there
forever to know that, you know, we do have programs to assist them with.
'" Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further questions or. .. comments... for
Mr. Parsons here this afternoon? You do, Members, have a copy of House Bill Number
1301, House Draft 1, Senate Draft 2 ... attached to the revised resolution. And I believe
under Section 1 in the third paragraph, it pretty much spells out the ...how it's gonna be
functioning as far as through the, the respective counties. So it gives a pretty decent
breakdown there--where the monies are coming from, where it's going to, and how much,
and then how, how it gets utilized. And... the Chair, anyway, feels that what has been
presented thus far falls within the scope of, of the intent of, of, of the, of Act 51.
Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Parsons, did you...have the
occasion to track this Bill when it was going through the Legislature?
MR. PARSONS: Chair? Yes, I did. I wrote testimony through the Mayor's Office .. .in support
of House Bill130l.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And did they start out with a larger sum?
MR. PARSONS: Well, at, at that time, at the time that I submitted testimony, there wasn't a, a
dollar figure or appropriation attached to it. It was blank. And that was to be decided by
Ways and Means.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And ... so, can you give us any feeling as to what, maybe,
the Legislature might appropriate next year for something like this? I mean, 'cause we're
really only just. .. hardly ...
. . . you know, we're just the tip of the iceberg here. And the sooner we address this
comprehensively, the better chance we have to eradicate because--could you tell us how
fast these frogs multiply?
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MR. PARSONS: ... Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Parsons?
MR. PARSONS: Thank you for your questions, Councilmember Anderson. Uh .. .I will, I
won't try to answer scientific questions, but in terms of your question ... of what the
Legislature might appropriate in coming years, I, I believe, that there is a strong message
at the Legislature that funds will continue to be needed for a variety of invasive
species--control, education, bio-control, and the ability, as we're asking for here, to do
rapid response to ...
. . . species that we already know are here, as well as part of the HISC money goes to
prevention, to, as to support Department of Agriculture in tightening inspections. The
HISC has been working with a 4 million dollar budget. So it was a little bit unusual for a
standalone .. .invasive species to be awarded any funding at all This was brought forward
by, I believe, Cliff Tsuji of the Big Island. It was his pet bill. He ... he brought it forward
with... a great deal of personal interest for his District which is severely impacted by
Coqui frogs, and was successful in getting a little more money appropriated. And I think
that from the responses that I heard after the bill was passed and the .. .300,000 was
attached to it, I think everybody realized that it probably wasn't sufficient. Although,
50,000 dollars can make a great deal of difference on Kauai and Oahu, which are less
impacted. There are only a few ... populations of frogs on, on each of those islands. But
it, it definitely will help our efforts here. It's not, it's not enough, but it's definitely going
to help. And we're making headway--as ... as Teya reported earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you, Mr. Parsons. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions, Members, for Mr. Parsons?
... Members, if you recall, when the Mayors of the respective Counties went to the State
Legislature prior to opening day, the request just from the Mayor of the Big Island, as
well as our Mayor. .. totaled in the millions, the request for this problem because of its
impact. So it evolved. It is where it is. We have what we have. And... so with that, the
Chair recommends that we move forward, first, with adopting the revised proposed
resolution, which is notated as, under Number 2 of BF-41 on your... on your agenda.
Members, entertaining a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
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CHAIR KANE: Moved and seconded by Members Tavares and Molina. Discussion? And
again, we're on the proposed ... revised proposed resolution.
· .. Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed?
· .. It's unanimous. Excused--Carroll and Johnson.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of revised resolution.

CHAIR KANE: Members, moving forward on passing on first reading the proposed bill for an
ordinance amending the Fiscal Year '06 Budget for the County of Maui as it pertains to
the Office of the Mayor. This is for Appendix A, Members. Entertaining a motion to
pass.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, also includes the filing of County Communication 05-245.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Understood.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Tavares and Hokama. Discussion?
· .. Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Members. Excused from that vote--Johnson, Carroll.
· .. Mr. Parsons, thank you for your-MR. PARSONS: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --your attendance this afternoon. Members, we have no further business for the
Budget and Finance Committee meeting of August 16th , 2005.
· .. To all of you, let's send our prayers to ... to Ms. Anderson's husband who's-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ms. Johnson's husband.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh ...
CHAIR KANE: --Ms. Johnson. Forgive me.
· .. So let's all, let's give 'em our thoughts, please ... (inaudible) . .. With that, Members,
this meeting for August 16th is adjourned ... (gavel). .. Sorry about that.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's okay.

ADJOURN:

2:49p.m.

Transcribed by: Camille Sakamoto
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